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TYLNEY HALL
Name: TYLNEY HALL
County: Hampshire
District: Basingstoke and Deane (District Authority)
Parish: Newnham
County: Hampshire
District: Hart (District Authority)
Parish: Hook
County: Hampshire
District: Hart (District Authority)
Parish: Rotherwick

label.localisation:  Latitude: 51.294705
Longitude: -0.97669335
National Grid Reference: SU 71447 55561
Map: Download afull scale map (PDF)

label.overview:  Heritage Category: Park and Garden
Grade: I1*
List Entry Number: 1000176
Datefirst listed: 18-Jan-1992

Details

Late Victorian and Edwardian gardens, pleasure grounds, and a park associated with acountry house. The gardenswere laid out
by Selden Wornum in 1899-1901, with additions by Robert Weir Schultz in 1901-04, with planting advice by Gertrude Jekyll.
HISTORIC DEVELOPMENT

The first Tylney Hall was built in 1700, although a mansion had existed on the site since the C16. In 1725 the estate passed
through the female line to Richard Child, Viscount Castlemaine, later Earl of Tylney. An extensive formal landscape was laid
out during his ownership. Following the marriage in 1812 of Catherine Tylney Long to William Wellesley Pole and their later
financial difficulties, the mansion was demolished and the valuable timber on the estate was sold. Between 1857 and 1878 the
property was unoccupied. During the 1870s Charles E Harris gradually began to purchase land on the estate, finally acquiring
over 3000 acres (¢ 1215ha). Harris then commissioned Edward Birchall to build a new mansion on the site of the C18 house.
This was extensively atered between 1899 and 1901 by Selden Wornum for Sir Lionel Philips; Wornum also laid out formal
gardens, including the Italian Terrace, Dutch Garden, and the kitchen garden. Robert Weir Schultz carried out further work
on the Hall from 1901 to 1904 and was called in by Lady Philips “to lay out the beds and formal parts of a luxurious garden
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layout including orangery, greenhouses, summer houses, boathouse etc' (Victorian Society notes). In 1906 Gertrude Jekyll
(1843-1932) was called in to supply Schultz with a design and planting plans for a Wild Garden, and for flower borders in
the gardens. Phillips sold Tylney before the First World War and during the war the Hall was used as a hospital. It was sold
again in 1919 to Mgjor Cayzer, later Lord Rotherwick, who sold the estate in 1933 to his shipping line, and it became the
headquarters of the Clan Line. In 1946 the Hall and park were sold to Middlesex County Council and the Hall was converted
into aresidential home. The park was then sold on to Tylney Golf Club and when Middlesex County Council was abolished
the Hall and remaining grounds were taken over by Brent Borough Council. In 1984 Brent Borough Council sold the Hall and
the 25ha garden to Celebrated Country Hotels, in whose ownership they remain (2000). Brent Borough Council retained part
of the parkland for use as an outdoor education centre and the remaining parkland continues as a golf course.

DESCRIPTION

LOCATION, AREA, BOUNDARIES, LANDFORM, SETTING Tylney Hall, ¢ 125ha, islocated on the crest of anorth-facing
hill halfway between the villages of Rotherwick and Newnham. The land falls steeply on the north-west side of the house and
more gently on the south-west and east sides. Viewsto the north-west are now (2000) obscured by planting. Tylney is bounded
by Newnham village to the south, Rotherwick village to the north-east, and lanes and roads around most of the boundary, with
open fields and copses beyond.

ENTRANCES AND APPROACHES The estate has lodges in Rotherwick village to the north-east and in Newnham to the
south. From the southern lodge, West Lodge (Wornum 1899-1901, listed, together with the gate piers, grade I1), atree-lined
drive curves gently northwards through an area of open parkland. This formed the main approach to the late C19 house but
isno longer in use. The north drive is marked by a straight lime avenue which leads across the park from Rotherwick Lodge
following the line of adrive indicated on an estate map of 1774. An area of car parking now interrupts its path alittle to the
north of the Hall. A short driveleads from Ridge Lane to the east, past Middle Lodge (Wornum, listed grade I1) and through an
area of pleasure grounds to the entrance courtyard on the north-east side of the Hall, formed by the three sides of the U-shaped
house. A pair of gate piers (Schultz ¢ 1902, listed grade 1) stand on the north-east side of the courtyard, attached to the ballroom
and another pair (Schultz ¢ 1902, listed grade I1) stand on the south-east side of the courtyard attached to the service wing.
PRINCIPAL BUILDING Tylney Hall (listed grade 11*) standsin the centre of the gardens, surrounded by parkland. It was built
for Charles E Harris to the designs of Edward Birchall. The Hall was extensively altered between 1899 and 1901 by Selden
Wornum for Sir Lionel Philips, and then by Robert Weir Schultz from 1901 to 1904. It isared-brick, Tudor-style E-plan house,
with a gabled porch in the centre of the entrance (north-east) front. To the south-east of the Hall is a one-storey red-brick
courtyard, the former kitchen wing. To the south-east of the kitchen courtyard is a two-storey stable courtyard, with a central
round-arched entrance flanked by double Doric columns and with a clock above. To the south-east of the Stable Courtyard is
the red-brick Laundry Courtyard. The courtyards are more utilitarian in design the further they are from the Hall.

GARDENS AND PLEASURE GROUNDS In front of the north-west front of the Hall are two terraces, beyond which is a
lawn, enclosed by the trees of the thickly wooded pleasure grounds. The surrounding trees have grown to obscure the fine
viewsfrom theterrace. A doubleflight of central stepsleads down from the paved top terrace to the levelled lawn of the Italian
Garden (Wornum ¢ 1900) over 3m below. The land falls steeply from here down to a pair of lakes, 150m and 250m north-
west of the Hall. Flights of steps provide access from the sides of the garden up to the pleasure grounds and from the pair
of brick loggias (listed grade |1* together with the terrace and garden) at the far end of the lawn to the more informal area
beyond. A seat (c 1900, possibly by Schultz, listed grade I1) is placed at the east end of the east stair of the terrace. Robert Weir
Schultz submitted a layout for the Italian terrace as part of his commission to develop the gardens. He worked closely with
Gertrude Jekyll who supplied the planting plans. The main south-west to north-east axis of the Italian Garden is extended as a
path through Wellingtonias to the site of abrick summerhouse, of which only the base remains. To the north, at right angles off
this path, isacircular rose garden ringed by ayew hedge. The pleasure grounds around it are planted informally with amixture
of native and exotic trees. Gravelled paths lead through them and round the upper and lower lakes. An early C20 boathouse
stood at the northern end of the upper lake but only the base of this now survives (2000).
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The south-west side of the Hall is treated simply, with a stone sundial standing at the head of the Long Lawn. A lime walk
leads off from the Lawn to the kitchen garden. The Lawn forms a broad grass vista along which there are views out to the
surrounding countryside. A tennis court surrounded by a yew hedge is situated next to Schultz's water tower (listed grade 11*
together with the walled kitchen gardens), which stands at the north-west corner of the kitchen garden. Wornum linked the
house to the kitchen garden area by a Dutch Garden, a small enclosed rectangular garden on two levels. A swimming pool was
inserted into the lower level in the 1950s.

Tothe south of thekitchen gardenisawater and rock garden laid out ¢ 1906 to aplan by Schultz, with detailed planting by JekylI.
The area was partly reworked by William Wood of Taplow in 1935-6. Two streams flow from an informal pond, originally a
canal which formed part of the C18 layout, and form a series of pools running through rockwork to a second, larger pond.
PARK The main area of parkland forms the setting for the pleasure grounds to the north, west, and east of the Hall. Now a golf
course, the basic structure of the original clumpsin the hilly landscape has been preserved, and the two avenues are intact. The
lime avenue aligned on the north-east front frames a view across the park and country beyond. It marksthe line of the approach
to the C18 house which was surrounded by an extensive formal landscape laid out in the 1720s. Much of the timber in the park
was cut down in the early C19 to pay the debts of William Pole Wellesley, to whom the estate had passed by marriage. The
flatter south park still has some parkland plantings and is encircled by a shelter belt of pines. The road to the east is screened
by a narrow shelter belt.

KITCHEN GARDEN The brick-walled kitchen garden (walls and buildings together listed grade 11*) to the south of the Hall,
and the orchards beyond, were designed by Wornum as an integral part of the garden scheme. The garden has been grassed
over but the walls and associated garden buildings, including the head gardener's house, apple store, mushroom house, bothy,
potting shed, and grape store remain. A little of the glassfrom the original ranges survives. One of the approachesto the kitchen
garden isfrom the south-east corner, through an archway with an attached garden house (Schultz 1901-04, together listed grade
I1*) at the southern end of the Laundry Court.
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Lega

This garden or other land is registered under the Historic Buildings and Ancient Monuments Act 1953 within the Register of
Historic Parks and Gardens by Historic England for its special historic interest.
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